

Councilors McCurry, Foley, Belanger, Ready and Seaver in favor.
Amendment carries.

Vote on order, as amended: 6/3; Councilors Lessard, Quattrone and Swanton opposed.
Councilors McCurry, St. Cyr, Foley, Belanger, Ready and Seaver in favor.
Motion carries.

2018.98 **IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...SEPTEMBER 4, 2018**
BE IT ORDERED, that the City Council of the City of Biddeford does hereby authorize the purchase of fifteen (15) parking Kiosk Units from CALE for an amount not to exceed \$99,430.00.

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor McCurry to grant the order.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Belanger to include the following financing language:

1. The City intends to finance some or all of the costs of the Project through issuance of the City's tax-exempt bonds.
2. The City reasonably expects that the maximum principal amount of bonds to be issued for the Project, including for reimbursement purposes, is an amount not to exceed \$14,000,000.
3. The City expects to pay certain costs of the Project, prior to the issuance of such bonds (the "original expenditures") and the City Manager is hereby authorized to advance money from the General Fund or from the City's TIF Fund(s) for payment of original expenditures of the Project.
4. The City expects to use bond proceeds to reimburse itself for such original expenditures.
5. This is a declaration of official intent pursuant to the requirements of Treasury Regulation §1.150-2.
6. This declaration is in accordance with the City's Declaration of Official Intent adopted April 4, 2017.

Vote on amendment: Unanimous.

Motion by Councilor Swanton, seconded by Councilor Lessard to purchase only two(2) kiosks and lease thirteen(13) of them.

Vote: 2/7; Councilors Swanton and St. Cyr in favor.

Councilors McCurry, Quattrone, Foley, Belanger, Ready, Sever and Lessard opposed.
Amendment fails.

Vote on order, as amended: 5/4; Councilors Quattrone, Seaver, Lessard and Swanton opposed.
Councilors McCurry, St. Cyr, Foley, Belanger and Ready in favor.
Motion carries.

2018.100 **IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...SEPTEMBER 4, 2018**
BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article III, Parking Stopping and Standing, **Section 42-56 Taxi Parking**, be amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

Taxi parking.

~~The Alfred Street (police station) municipal parking lot shall be used by any City licensed cab company, at the two spaces on right of lot immediately behind Ocean Communities Federal Credit Union, on a first-come, first-serve basis.~~

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Swanton to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: Unanimous.

2018.101

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...SEPTEMBER 4, 2018

BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article III, Parking Stopping and Standing, **Section 42-59 Snow Emergency Parking Ban**, be amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

The following provisions shall apply during snow emergencies as declared by the Director of Public Works:

- (1) When the Director of Public Works deems it necessary to allow for the safe and efficient removal of snow and ice from the public ways within the City, the Director may declare that a snow emergency exists. The Director of Public Works will announce the snow emergency by notifying the local radio and television media, and request that they make periodic announcements of the parking ban. The Director will state in his notice that during the hours of the emergency, parking of motor vehicles is prohibited on any way or municipal parking lot within the jurisdiction of the City, except that the municipal parking lots at the Community Center (Myrtle Street side only) and ~~, Foss Street, Washington Street, Clifford Park, the Gas House and the Water Street parking lot~~ are open for parking during the period of the emergency and the, Foss Street Parking Lot, Washington Street Parking Lot, Gas House Parking Lot, and the Water Street Parking Lot are open for parking during the period of the emergency on a pay-per-use permit-only basis.
[Amended 1-16-2018 by Ord. No. 2018.6]

(2) For permit-only lots, a permit may be obtained through self-service kiosks, mobile app when available or through the city clerk's office. The form of permit to be displayed shall be the license plate referenced on the valid vehicle registration, appropriately recorded during the permitting process, and properly attached to the vehicle. Municipal parking permit holders must comply with all snow emergency parking ban notices and instructions regardless of the nature of the parking permit.

(2)(3) A vehicle parked in violation of the declared snow emergency shall be towed at the owner's expense.

(3)(4) Vehicles parked in the Foss Street and Washington Street, Clifford Park, Community Center, Gas House and Water Street municipal parking lots as authorized by this section must be removed prior to 7:00 a.m. on the day of the end of the snow emergency, and these municipal parking lots may not be used until they have been cleared of snow.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Swanton to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: 6/3; Councilors Foley, Seaver and Ready opposed.

Councilors Swanton, McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Belanger and Lessard in favor.

Motion carries.

2018.102

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...SEPTEMBER 4, 2018,

BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article III, Parking Stopping and Standing, **Section 42-62 Identification and Use of Municipal Parking Lots**, is amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

Identification and use of municipal parking lots.

The following is a list of the municipal parking lots along with a description of their location and authorized use. For the purposes of this chapter, all municipal parking lots are considered as public ways as defined in M.R.S.A. Title § 29-A. No vehicle shall remain parked in a municipal public parking lot for more than 48 consecutive hours. A vehicle parked in violation of this section may be towed at the owner's expense.

Alfred Street Parking Lot, refers to the City municipal parking lot that is adjacent to the 39 Alfred Street

Police Station, and is bordered by Alfred Street, Foss Street, and the property line at 1 Pool Street and further described as Map 38, Lot 404.

~~Rows 2, and 3 and 4, being about 44 spaces, parking is limited to two-hour parking from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday shall be reserved for permit parking with a maximum of 65% of spaces available for monthly (Monday-Friday) permits, a minimum 5% of spaces for monthly (24/7) permits and the remainder available for short-term, and monthly (nights and weekend) permit parking on a rolling basis; Row 1, which is adjacent to, and is parallel to the police station, is reserved for police parking only, being about 15 spaces. The first two spaces in Row 1 are reserved for, and shall be posted and clearly marked as, handicap parking. Row 4, which is adjacent to and is parallel to the property at 1 Pool Street, shall be limited to four hours parking from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.~~

City Hall Parking Lot, shall be designated as the ways and parking spaces bordered by City Hall from Adams Street thence southerly along City Hall, thence westerly along the rear of City Hall and City Theater, thence westerly along properties identified as Map 38, Lots 134 and 134-1, thence easterly along property identified as Map 38, Lot 194 South Street, thence northerly easterly along South Street to the Civil War Memorial traffic island, thence easterly on the northerly edge of the Civil War Memorial traffic island, thence northerly on the westerly edge of the Civil War Memorial traffic island, thence northerly along Adams Street to City Hall.

- (1) No vehicle shall be parked in the area designated as the City Hall parking lot between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:305:00 p.m., unless such vehicle displays an official parking sticker-pass issued by the City Clerk, and displayed in a manner determined by the Clerk.
- (2) The City Clerk may issue official parking stickers-passes to municipal officials and employees.
- (3) Two spaces shall be posted and clearly marked and reserved for disability parking. One of the spaces shall be van accessible.
- (4) The area of the City Hall parking lot that is immediately adjacent to the Civil War Memorial, and is bordered by South Street shall have one space marked and reserved for the City Clerk; one space marked and reserved for the City Manager; one space marked and reserved for the Mayor; with the remaining parking spaces reserved for use by municipal vehicles only between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:305:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.
[Amended 5-21-2013 by Ord. No. 2013.39]
- (5) The area of the City Hall parking lot that is immediately adjacent to the City Hall building, and that is bordered by Adams Street shall be designated and marked as follows: two spaces reserved for use by municipal vehicles only between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:305:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, with the remaining spaces as one-hour parking for use by the general public to conduct business at City Hall.
- (6) The three parking stalls in the area of the City Hall parking lot that is closest to the rear entrance to City Hall building, and to City Theater shall be limited to one-hour parking and reserved for City business only between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:305:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.

Clifford Park Parking Lot, is a City public parking lot that is located on Pool Street, and is further identified as ~~GIS ID~~ Map 39, Lot -334, with a physical address of 130 Pool Street.

One space shall be posted and clearly marked as reserved for disability parking.

No vehicle shall remain parked in this parking lot longer than 24 consecutive hours.

Community Center Parking Lots, refers to the City public parking lots at the J. Richard Martin Community Center, located at 189 Alfred Street as identified on Map 34, Lot 228, and further described as the parking lot which is adjacent and parallel to the Community Center, and Myrtle Street on the east side; and, the parking lot which is adjacent and parallel to the Community Center, and Clark Street on the west side.

Two spaces which shall be posted and clearly marked as handicap parking, located on the Clark Street side, at or near the handicap ramp, which is located at the northwest corner of the Community Center building.

Two spaces which shall be posted and clearly marked as handicap parking, located on the Myrtle Street side, at or near the rear of the Community Center building on the southeast corner.

Two spaces which shall be posted and clearly marked as ten-minute limited parking from 6:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m., Monday through Friday for YMCA Daycare, one located on left side of the

main entrance to the Daycare 10 feet from the concrete curb and one located on right side of the main entrance to the Daycare.

Downtown Parking Lot, refers to the City public parking lot located at 17 — 21 Franklin Street and further described as Map 38, Lots 389 and 390.

The lot shall be reserved for permit-only parking with a maximum of 65% of spaces available for monthly (Monday-Friday) permits, a minimum 5% of spaces for monthly (24/7) permits and the remainder available for short-term, and monthly (nights and weekend) permit parking on a rolling basis;

~~Twenty-five spaces which shall be posted and clearly marked as two-hour parking.~~

Two spaces which shall be posted and clearly marked as handicap parking.

Federal Street Parking Lot ~~is, refers to the City public parking lot, historically referred to that as the Old Courthouse parking lot,~~ located on the corner of Franklin Street and Federal Street behind ~~the Old Courthouse building on~~ 25 — 27 Washington Street, and is exclusive of a strip of land located between ~~the Old Courier Building~~ 5 — 13 Washington Street and ~~the Old Courthouse,~~ 25 — 27 Washington Street, and further described as Map 38, Lot 353-1.

The lot shall be reserved for permit-only parking with a maximum of 65% of spaces available for monthly (Monday-Friday) permits, a minimum 5% of spaces for monthly (24/7) permits and the remainder available for short-term, and monthly (nights and weekend) permit parking on a rolling basis;

~~Two spaces which shall be posted and clearly marked as reserved for use by the Pepperell Trust Bank.~~

~~Six spaces which shall be posted and clearly marked as two-hour parking.~~

Foss Street Parking Lot, refers to the City municipal public parking lot located at the formerly known street address numbers 5, 7, and 15 to 21 Foss Street, and as further described on City Tax Map 39, Lots 80 and 84.

The lot shall be designated as permit-only parking with a maximum of 65% of spaces available for monthly (Monday-Friday) permits, a minimum 5% of spaces for monthly (24/7) permits and the remainder available for short-term, and monthly (nights and weekend) permit parking on a rolling basis.

No vehicle shall remain parked in this parking lot longer than 24 consecutive hours without a valid permit.

Franklin Street Parking Lot, refers to the City public parking lot located at the corner of Franklin Street, Washington Street and Federal Street, parallel to Jefferson Street, and further described as Map 38, Lots 354, 355 and 360.

~~Thirteen spaces which shall be posted and clearly marked as reserved for use by the Pepperell Trust Bank.~~

The lot shall be designated as permit-only parking with a maximum of 65% of spaces available for monthly (Monday-Friday) permits, a minimum 5% of spaces for monthly (24/7) permits and the remainder available for short-term, and monthly (nights and weekend) permit parking on a rolling basis. Ten spaces ~~which~~ shall be posted and clearly marked as reserved for use by courthouse employees.

No vehicle shall remain parked in this parking lot longer than 24 consecutive hours without a valid permit.

Gas House Parking Lot, is a City public parking lot that is located on Water Street, and is situated between Mechanic's Park and the Waste Water Treatment Facility, and further described as Map 41, Lot 16.

The lot shall be designated as permit-only parking with a maximum of 65% of spaces available for monthly (Monday-Friday) permits, a minimum 5% of spaces for monthly (24/7) permits and the remainder available for short-term, and monthly (nights and weekend) permit parking on a rolling basis. One space shall be posted and clearly marked as reserved for disability parking.

No vehicle shall remain parked in this parking lot longer than 24 consecutive hours without a valid permit.

Washington Street Parking Lot, refers to the City public parking lot located at 75 Washington Street and is more specifically identified as Map 38, Lot 312~~the corner of Washington Street and Jefferson Street.~~

The lot shall be designated as permit-only parking with a maximum of 65% of spaces available for monthly (Monday-Friday) permits, a minimum 5% of spaces for monthly (24/7) permits and the remainder available for short-term, and monthly (nights and weekend) permit parking on a rolling basis.

No vehicle shall remain parked in this parking lot longer than 24 consecutive hours without a valid permit.

Wastewater Treatment Facility Parking Lot, refers to the municipally owned and controlled parking lot located at the intersection of Water Street and Pike Street, and is more specifically identified as Map 41, Lot 1.

~~(1) Six spaces which shall be posted and clearly marked as reserved for use by the wastewater treatment facility between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. A vehicle parked in one of these reserved parking spaces shall display an official parking sticker issued by the City Clerk.~~

The lot shall be designated as permit-only parking with a maximum of 65% of spaces available for monthly (Monday-Friday) permits, a minimum 5% of spaces for monthly (24/7) permits and the remainder available for short-term, and monthly (nights and weekend) permit parking on a rolling basis.

No vehicle shall remain parked in this parking lot longer than 24 consecutive hours without a valid permit.

~~All parking spaces that are not otherwise marked as reserved may be used as public parking. No vehicle shall remain parked in this parking lot longer than 24 consecutive hours, and may be subject to being towed if the time limit is exceeded.~~

Parking spaces marked and dedicated to short-term parking of 30 minutes or less shall be so marked and shall not require a permit within the designated permit-only parking lots.

For permit-only lots, a permit may be obtained through self-service kiosks, a mobile app when available or through the city clerk's office. The form of permit to be displayed shall be the license plate referenced on the valid vehicle registration, appropriately recorded during the permitting process, and properly attached to the vehicle.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Ready to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: 6/3; Councilors Seaver, Ready and Swanton opposed.

Councilors McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Foley, Belanger and Lessard in favor.

Motion carries.

2018.103 **IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...SEPTEMBER 4, 2018,**
BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article III, Parking Stopping and Standing, **Section 42-64 Fees for Parking Violations**, is amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

Fees for parking violations.

(a) Fees for parking violations shall be set as follows:

(1) Parking in snow removal or plowing area: \$40.

(2) Parking in fire lane: \$40.

(3) Overtime parking: \$25.

(4) Parking in a truck zone and/or loading/unloading zone: \$30.

(5) Double parking: \$40.

- (6) Parking in no parking, etc., area: \$40.
- (7) Parking in front of fire hydrant: \$40.
- (8) Blocking driveway (upon complaint): \$40.
- (9) Parking on sidewalks: \$35.
- (10) Parking facing traffic: \$25.
- (11) Parking in a permit only zone: \$35. (except for municipal lots that require a permit)
- (12) Parking in a disability designated area: traffic infraction.
- (13) Failure to purchase a permit for permit required municipal lots: \$50

All parking fines left unpaid after 30 days shall be doubled.

- (b) A vehicle with three or more outstanding parking violations issued by the Police Department, and found to be in violation of any of the City parking ordinances, will be subject to towing or immobilized by the use of an auto boot. The vehicle will not be released to the owner or agent of the owner until the violations and tow charges are paid.

It will be prima facie evidence that the registered owner of the vehicle committed the parking violation.

- (c) The maximum fee that may be charged by a towing company for a vehicle requested to be towed by the Police Department will be at the direction of the Chief of Police.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Swanton to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: 8/1; Councilor Seaver opposed.

Councilors Swanton, McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Foley, Belanger, Ready and Lessard in favor. Motion carries.

2018.104 **IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...SEPTEMBER 4, 2018**
BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article III, Parking Stopping and Standing, **Section 42-66 Beach Permit Parking Enumerated**, is amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

Sec. 42-66 Beach permit parking regulations enumerated.

In order to assure that the residents of the City shall have access to the beaches of Biddeford that those beaches and the adjacent areas shall not become overcrowded, and in order to preserve the health and safety of the beach areas for the residents of those parts of the City, it is established that:

- (1) Parking at those areas designated by Subsection (9) during the period from June 15 to Labor Day and between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. shall be by permit only. There shall be no parking in the aforementioned areas after 9:00 p.m. and until 5:00 a.m.
- (2) For the purpose of this section, the word "resident" shall meet one of the following criteria:
 - (a) Person who pays real estate property taxes to the City;
 - (b) Person who is a registered voter in the City;
 - (c) Person who can provide a vehicle registered both in the City and the State of Maine. All residents of the City may obtain parking permits for compliance with this section for a fee of \$25 for the first vehicle, \$15 per additional vehicle registered at the same address, \$15 for residents 65 and older, payable to the City Clerk. Proof of eligibility will be the burden of the applicant.
- (3) Persons ineligible under Subsection (2) may obtain a parking permit to be in

compliance with this section for a fee of \$125 for a season permit; \$65 for a seven-day permit; \$40 for a three-day permit; and \$20 for a one-day permit ~~from either the office of the city clerk or from parking kiosks~~. The seven-day and three-day permits are valid in consecutive days only, and are not transferable from one vehicle to another.

- (4) ~~For residents, After~~ after presenting the registration of the vehicle upon which the permit is to be ~~affixed~~applied, permits issued under this section shall be ~~sequentially numbered~~recorded and shall be registered by the owner's name and vehicle registration plate number. These permits shall read in part, "All Parking At Your Own Risk."

Season permits shall be valid from June 15 to Labor Day; seven-day and three-day permits shall be valid only for the consecutive dates specified on the permits.

- (5) The form of permit to be displayed ~~will be a sticker~~ shall be the license plate referenced on the valid vehicle registration, appropriately recorded during the permitting process, and properly attached to the vehicle. ~~properly attached to the vehicle. The appropriate location for placement of the sticker will be determined by the City Clerk.~~

~~Motorcyclists shall carry their permit sticker with their vehicle registration and inspection sticker and will display the parking sticker upon request of the City employee. Convertibles shall affix the permit on the lower right hand passenger side of the windshield.~~

- (6) ~~Improper or transitory display of the permit sticker shall invalidate the sticker except as provided for motorcycles.~~ Permits obtained by fraudulent means are invalid. Invalidation of a permit ~~sticker~~ may lead to further liability as provided by this section.

- (7) Violations of the provisions of this section shall be punished by a fine of \$50 for each separate offense. ~~Use of an invalid sticker~~ Failure to obtain a permit and illegal parking are separate offenses. Vehicles illegally parked will be towed at the owner's expense.

- (8) No vehicle shall ~~be eligible for~~ display a parking permit under this section if that vehicle is greater than seven feet in height and/or 20 feet in length. The length of a vehicle shall include any attached appurtenances such as trailers. ~~Stickers~~ Permits issued under this section shall ~~be affixed~~ apply to motorized vehicles only.

- (9) Those areas of the City of Biddeford to be restricted by this section are as follows:

(a) Biddeford Pool Bathhouse Parking Lot (Gilbert Boucher Memorial Park): On the lower portion of the parking lot, parking is restricted for holders of resident parking ~~stickers~~ permits only from 8:00 a.m. until 12:00 noon; anyone holding a nonresident permit is permitted to park at those locations after 12:00 noon. The holders of resident or nonresident parking permits may park in the upper portion of the parking lot during those times that a beach permit is required.
[Amended 4-18-2017 by Ord. No. 2017.29]

(b) Middle Beach Lot (across from Bridge Road): Parking is restricted for holders of resident parking ~~stickers~~ permits only from 8:00 a.m. until 12:00 noon; anyone holding a nonresident permit is permitted to park at those locations after 12:00 noon.

(c) Curbside parking on Fortunes Rocks Road along Etherington's Pond as follows:

- (1) Ocean side: westerly from a point 50 feet westerly of pole J30 to a point 20 feet westerly of pole J37.

- (10) Persons renting seasonal sites at a tent and trailer park shall be considered nonresidents.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Swanton to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Quattrone to amend the ordinance by adding language that would allow for hourly permitted parking.
Motion was withdrawn.

Motion by Councilor Belanger, seconded by Councilor McCurry to amend Sec. (4) to change the word “apply” to “applied,” and in Sec. (5), remove the second “properly attached to the vehicle.”
Vote: Unanimous.

Vote on ordinance, as amended: Unanimous.

2018.105 **IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...SEPTEMBER 4, 2018**
BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article IV Specific Street Regulations, **Section 42-90 No Parking**, be amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

Lincoln Street, even-numbered side, ~~along the entire frontage of the M.E.R.C. property, from Elm Street to the southern corner of Pearl Street to the Newman lot line, being a distance of 140 feet, more or less the intersection of Saco Falls Way and Lincoln Street~~

Lincoln Street, odd numbered side, from Pearl Main Street to Elm Street (U.S. Route 1) ~~(M.E.R.C. plant exit) Lincoln Street, northeasterly (odd-numbered) side, for a distance of 30 feet from the entrance and exit of the M.E.R.C. facility~~

Main Street, both sides, from Saco City Line to Elm Street, from 1:00 a.m. to 6:00 a.m., year round

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Quattrone to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: 6/3; Councilors Seaver, Ready and St. Cyr opposed.

Councilors McCurry, Swanton, Quattrone, Foley, Belanger and Lessard in favor.

Motion carries.

2018.106 **IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...SEPTEMBER 4, 2018**
BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article IV Specific Street Regulations, **Section 42-92 Limited Parking**, be amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

(a) Parking will be limited at the following locations in the specified manner.

Adams Street, even-numbered side, beginning at a point 20 feet from the intersection of Main Street and Adams Street curblines, thence southerly for ~~threetwo~~, one-hour parking spaces, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Saturdays; exception: holidays

Adams Street, odd-numbered side, from Main Street to Jefferson Street, two hours, Monday through Saturday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.; unless otherwise posted

Adams Street, even-numbered side, from South Street to Jefferson Street, two hours, Monday through Saturday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.; unless otherwise posted

Bacon Street, ~~northeasterly (odd-numbered)~~both sides, Alfred Street to Foss Street, two hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.; exception: Sundays and holidays

Center Street, both sides, from Jefferson Street to Kossuth Street, two hours, Monday through Saturday from 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.; unless otherwise posted

Emery Street, even-numbered side, from Main Street to Bacon Street, two hours, Monday through Saturday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.; unless otherwise posted

Franklin Street, odd-numbered side, beginning at a point 20 feet from the intersection with Main Street, thence southwesterly for a distance of one space, 15 minutes

Adjacent to the northwest side of the building located at 42 Franklin Street, two parking spaces for 30 minutes

Southwest corner of the intersection of Franklin Street and Federal Street, two spaces for 30 minutes

Hill Street, odd-numbered side, from Main Street to Bacon Street, two hours, Monday through Saturday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.; unless otherwise posted

Jefferson Street, northeasterly (odd-numbered) side, from the Franklin Street parking lot entrance to Washington Street, 15 minutes

Immediately adjacent to the southeast side of the building located at 69 Jefferson Street, two parking spaces for 30 minutes

Jefferson Street, odd-numbered side, from Main Street to South Street, two hours, Monday through Saturday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.; unless otherwise posted

Jefferson Street, adjacent to the building at 265 Main Street, even-numbered side, one space beginning at a point 20 feet from intersection with Main Street, thence easterly for a distance of 24 feet **for 30 minutes**

Lincoln Street, odd-numbered side, from Main Street to Pearl Street, two hours, Monday through Saturday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.; unless otherwise posted

South Street, both sides, from Adams Street to Jefferson Street, two hours, Monday through Saturday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.; unless otherwise posted

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Swanton to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Motion by Councilor Belanger, seconded by Councilor Ready to amend the ordinance by removing the proposed Emery Street amendment. Be it further moved that Hill Street also be removed as a proposed amendment.

Vote: 8/1; Councilor Lessard opposed.

Councilors Swanton, McCurry, St. Cyr, Quattrone, Foley, Belanger, Ready and Seaver in favor. Amendment carries.

Vote on ordinance, as amended: Unanimous.

2018.107 **IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...SEPTEMBER 4, 2018**
BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Biddeford that the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article IV Specific Street Regulations, **Section 42-94 Taxi stands**, be amended by adding or ~~deleting~~ to read as follows:

Delete in its entirety:

~~The following streets and areas are hereby designated as taxi stands:~~

~~Lincoln Street, odd-numbered (westerly) side, beginning at a point 20 feet north from the intersection with Main Street, thence northerly for a distance of three parking spaces~~

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor McCurry to grant the first reading of the ordinance amendment.

Vote: Unanimous.

Appointments:

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...SEPTEMBER 4, 2018

ORDERED, that I, Alan M. Casavant, Mayor of the City of Biddeford, do hereby re-designate:

**Roch Angers
26 Cathedral Oaks Drive
Ward 6**

on the *Planning Board* from an Associate Member to a Voting Member, for a term to expire in December 2020.

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor Belanger to confirm the redesignation.
Vote: Unanimous.

IN BOARD OF CITY COUNCIL...SEPTEMBER 4, 2018

ORDERED, that I, Alan M. Casavant, Mayor of the City of Biddeford, do hereby appoint:

**Bruce Benway
18 Ocean View Drive
Ward 1**

to the *Planning Board* as an Associate Member, (replacing Richard Potvin, II), for a term to expire in December 2019.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Belanger to confirm the appointment.
Vote: Unanimous.

Public Addressing the Council... (5 minute limit per speaker; 30 minute total time limit):
There were no public comments.

City Manager Report:

City Manager, James Bennett noted that the lead abatement project has begun at the Police Station; which has turned into the removal of asbestos as well.

Other Business:

Councilor Swanton: announced that on September 15th, the Dept. of Public Works will hold a Hazardous Waste Day from 8:00am to noon.

Councilor Swanton asked that Staff address the issue of campers/RVs parking at the beaches this summer.

Councilor Foley: announced that the RiverJam and Fringe Fest events are coming up during the weekend of September 14th and 15th. The RiverJam 5K Race is scheduled for the morning of Sept. 15th; and Fringe Fest will be held down on Main Street on Friday, Sept. 14th.

Councilor Foley also announced that the Mayor's Ad Hoc Community Center Review Committee will host a Listening Session on Wednesday, September 19th at 6pm in the J. Richard Martin Community Center auditorium to gather feedback on the value of the Community Center and its services.

Council President Addressing the Council: Councilor McCurry reminded folks of the Waterhouse Field Opening Ceremony coming up this Friday, Sept. 7th.

Mayor Addressing the Council: Mayor Casavant is pleased to have been a part of the UNE Night in the Downtown last Sunday, which was held for the incoming UNE first year students.

Executive Session: 1 MRSA 405(6)(C)... Economic Development

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Ready to move into Executive Session.
Vote: 8/1; Councilor Quattrone opposed.

Councilors Swanton, McCurry, St. Cyr, Foley, Belanger, Ready, Seaver and Lessard in favor.
Motion carries. Time: 7:03 p.m.

Motion by Councilor McCurry, seconded by Councilor Foley to move out of Executive Session.
Vote: Unanimous. Time: 7:20 p.m.

Motion by Councilor Ready, seconded by Councilor Foley to adjourn.
Vote: Unanimous. Time: 7:20 p.m.

Attest by: _____
Carmen J. Morris, City Clerk